NASA CR-120906



THE APPLICATION OF THE ANALOG SIGNAL TO DISCRETE TIME INTERVAL CONVERTER TO THE SIGNAL CONDITIONER POWER SUPPLIES

(NASA-CR-

SIGNAL

120906)

APPLICATION

N74-29571

CONVERTER SUPPL

日内

SIGNA DISCRETE THE

CONDIJ TIME

IONER POWER INTERVAL OF THE

с Н С

CSCL 09C G3/09

Uncla: 45425

ĩn

LES

TRW

Systems

Group

bу

A. D. Schoenfeld and Y. Yu

TRW SYSTEMS

Prepared for:

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION

NASA Lewis Research Center Cleveland, Ohio 44135

Contract NAS 3-16797

	ji			
1. Report No. NASA CR 120906	2. Government Access	ion No.	3. Recipient's Catalog	No.
4. Title and Subtitle The Application of the Analog S. Converter to the Signal Condition	Time Interval	5. Report Date August 1973		
Winterter to the Signal Condition	oner rower adppri		6, Performing Organiz	ation Code
7. Author(s)			8. Performing Organiza	ition Report No.
A. D. Schoenfeld			10. Work Unit No.	
9. Performing Organization Name and Address TRW Systems	· .	-	11 Contract or Grant	No
One Space Park Redondo Beach, Calif. 90278		. 'K	NAS 3-16797	
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address			13. Type of Report an	d Period Covered
National Aeronautics and Space . NASA Lewis Research Center 21000 Brookpark Road Cleveland, Ohio 44135	Administration		14. Sponsoring Agency	Code
15. Supplementary Notes Report Editor, Vincent R. Lalli NASA Lewis Research Center 21000 Brookpark Road Cleveland, Ohio 44135				÷
16. Abstract The Analog Signal to Discrete T utilized to control the signal outstanding static and dynamic associated with single-loop reg Eight converter boards, each co and delivered to NASA/LeRC.	ime Interval Conv conditioner power performance chara ulators. ntaining three in	erter (ASDTIC) micro supplies. The mult cteristics greatly e dependent dc to dc c	ominiatruized mod i-loop control p exceeding those g converter, were b	ule was provides enerally uilt, tested,
17. Key Words (Suggested by Author(s))	······································	18. Distribution Statement		<u> </u>
DC to DC Converters		Unclassified - U	Unlimited	
Microminiaturized ASDFIC Module	· ·			
ASUIIC Application	, · ·			
19. Security Clessif. (of this report)	20. Security Classif. (c	of this page)	21. No. of Pages	22. Price*
Unclassified	Unclassified	L	34	4.75

* For sale by the National Technical Information Service, Springfield, Virginia 22151

FOREWORD

This application program was sponsored under contract NAS12-2017 from the National Aeronautics and Space Administration to TRW Systems.

Acknowledgment is due to Dr. F. C. Schwarz, formerly of NASA/ERC and NASA/LeRC, who laid the foundation for this application program.

Our appreciation also goes to Mr. Vincent R. Lalli of NASA/LeRC, who provided assistance in the technical editing of this report.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
1.	SUMMARY	, T
2.	INTRODUCTION	. 2
3.	POWER PROCESSOR FUNCTIONAL BLOCK DIAGRAM	. 5
4.	CONVERTER SCHEMATICS	. 6
5.	DESCRIPTIONS OF POWER FUNCTIONAL BLOCKS	. 8
6.	DESCRIPTIONS OF CONTROL FUNCTIONAL BLOCKS	. 13
7.	BREADBOARD PERFORMANCES	. 23
8.	CONVERTER PACKAGING	. 25
9.	CONCLUSIONS	. 29
10.	APPENDIX	. 30
11.	REFERENCES.	. 36

PROCEEDING PAGE BLANK NOT FILMED

1. SUMMARY

The application of the microminiaturized ASDTIC (Analog Signal to Discrete Time Interval Converter) to the signal conditioner power supplies is discussed in detail.

The ASDTIC, conceived originally within NASA, was utilized as the basic control element for three buck switching regulators, which resulted in uniformly superior static and dynamic performances. For example, a $\pm 0.05\%$ output voltage regulation was achieved for an input change of 18V to 32V, a load change of open to full load (10W), and a temperature range of -55° C to 85° C.

A network to recover power-transistor switching loss was implemented to improve reliability, efficiency, and EMI control.

The successful application of the ASDTIC module has established the soundness of the ASDTIC control concept, and justified its further exploitation to utilize fully the inherent merits associated with the ASDTIC control.

2. INTRODUCTION

A nondissipatively-regulated dc to dc converter generally employs high-frequency switching for size and weight reduction. The oscillation is achieved by cyclically operating the power switch of the converter in its conduction state and its nonconduction state. Consequently, the converter control system must be able to accept analog signals emanating from the power circuit and the control reference, and to convert them into discrete time intervals in controlling the conduction and nonconduction of the power switch. The ratio of conduction time to a switching-frequency period is known as the power-switch duty cycle.

A classical duty-cycle control based exclusively on the sensing and amplification of the converter output-voltage error generally suffers certain inherent limitations. These limitations are basically caused by the LC output filter of the converter, which introduces poor dynamic response and potential instability into the converter operation.

The ever-increasing demands of space programs have served to promote considerable research effort toward the development of an electronic control system capable of improving the power-processor performance. One such system was conceived within a NASA Internal Research Program by Dr. F. Schwarz^[1], ^[2]. The controlling element in the system is basically an Analog-Signal-to-Discrete-Time-Interval converter (ASDTIC). In addition to the feedback control loop sensing the dc output voltage, the ASDTIC incorporated a second loop sensing an ac waveform inherent in the converter operation. This waveform can be either the voltage across the output-filter inductor or the current in the output-filter capacitor. Using this twoloop control, converter stability is enhanced, and its performance characteristics are greatly improved.

The ASDTIC control concept, was subsequently reduced to a microminia-[3,4] turized thin-film hybrid under contract NAS12-2017, and documented

This report describes the application of the microminiaturized ASDTIC module to a number of dc to dc converters. The packaged converters were used as signal-conditioner power supplies for the Brayton Cycle Space Power System. The power supplies consist of eight module frames, each of which contains three independent dc to dc chopper regulators; one 28V to 10V converter, one 28V to 5V converter, and one -28V to -10V converter. Each converter utilizes a microminiaturized ASDTIC module to achieve the desired regulating function. This report covers the design, development and fabrication of these converters. The work described here was performed from December 1969 to October 1970, under contract NAS12-2017, from NASA's Lewis Research Center.

The description starts with a converter block diagram, followed by a detailed discussion of each block in terms of the converter schematic. Breadboard performances are then presented to demonstrate the superb regulation accuracy obtained from the control loop. Packaging concepts including thermal consideration and component layout are discussed, and pictures of the fabricated power supply modules are given.

3. CONVERTER FUNCTIONAL BLOCK DIAGRAM

All three converters on each of the eight module frames have essentially the same block diagram shown in Figure 1. The dotted line shows the division between power and control circuit functions. These functions are summarized in Tables 1 and 11, respectively.

TABLE 1. POWER CIRCUIT FUNCTIONS

Blocks

Input Filter	Its functions are: (1) to isolate the switching effect of the converter from the power bus, and (2) to absorb voltage transients on the bus.
Basic Power Configuration	Input Voltage E, transistor switch S, diode D, inductor L, capacitor C, and load R constitute the basic stepdown chopper regulator. By properly controlling the duty cycle of switch S, a constant load voltage V can be maintained against variations in E and R.
Energy Re- covery Network	The network serves (1) to limit the inrush current curing the short interval when S is turned on and D is in the process of recovering its blocking capa- bility, thus improving efficiency and reliability, and (2) to reduce the switching spike at the conver- ter output.

Voltage Booster The need for this network is predicated by the offnominal low input voltage specified for this particular converter. It adds a voltage in series with the converter input to ensure the proper operation of the converter control logic.



Figure 1. Converter Functional Block Diagram

S

TABLE II. CONTROL CIRCUIT FUNCTIONS

Blocks

ASDTIC Voltage Regulator

One-Shot Pulse Generator

Functions

Starting from point A at the tip of diode D and tracing clockwise, the ac voltage across L and the dc voltage across C are separately sensed to become two input signals to the ASDTIC voltage regulator. The regulator processes the sensed signals, and provides the proper output to actuate a oneshot pulse generator for controlling the duty cycle of power switch S.

It determines the conduction time of switch S as a function of the converter input voltage E. The time interval is initiated by the output pulse from the threshold detector within the microminiaturized ASDTIC voltage regulator.

Overload protection is accomplished by sensing the inductor current. In the event of an overload, the combined function of the current sensor and the ASDTIC voltage regulator keeps S in switching-mode operation during current limiting; its duty cycle depends on the severity of the overload.

4. CONVERTER SCHEMATICS

The schematics for the three converters on each module frame are shown in Figure 2. From top to bottom, the converters are those providing a +10V output, a -10V output, and a +5V output. Detailed descriptions of all blocks, based on the given schematics, are given in the next section.

The accompanying parts list for Figure 2 is presented in the Appendix.

Overload Protection

-



Schematic Diagram of the Signal-Conditioner Power Supply

Figure 2.

5. DESCRIPTIONS OF POWER FUNCTIONAL BLOCKS

Due to the similarity among the three converters, the +10V converter will be used to describe circuit operations and designs associated with the functional blocks of all three converters.

5.1 INPUT FILTER

The input filter is physically located external to the fabricated converter module, and therefore is not shown in the schematic of Figure 2. The filter utilizes the two-stage configuration illustrated in Figure 3. The first stage containing L_A , R_A and C_A limits the resonant peaking of the entire filter. The second stage with L_B and C_B supplies most of the pulsed ac current required by the converter power switch. The combined function of both filter stages is to accomplish the two objectives stated in Table I.

5.2 BASIC POWER CONFIGURATION

Shown at the top of Figure 2, the +10V converter basic power configuration consists of power switch Q1, diode CR4, inductor L2, capacitors C6 and C7 in parallel, and the load. During the time when Q1 conducts, CR4 is back biased, input voltage E is supplied to the circuit containing inductor L2, capacitors C6 and C7, and the load. During the time when Q1 is off, CR4 becomes conducting to keep the current continuity in L2. The LC filter maintains essentially a dc voltage across the load.

Normal Operation

In steady-state, the net energy storage in L2 must be zero. Therefore,

$$(E - V)T_{on} = VT_{off}, \qquad (1)$$

(2)

Equation (1) is equivalent to

ET_{on} = VT

where $T = T_{on} + T_{off}$.

By maintaing a constant product of ET_{on} , the converter having a regulated V would operate essentially at a constant frequency 1/T. This feature is utilized to its advantage in the power converters.

Light-Load Operations

The light-load condition is defined as that causing the current in L2 to become zero during each steady-state operating cycle, and to remain zero for an interval T_{off}^{i} .

While equation (1) concerning zero net energy storage is still valid under this condition, the introduction of T'_{off} has caused a new switching period T' > T. The triangular input current averaged over a cycle is

$$I_{ave} = \frac{(E - V)T_{on}}{2L_2} \cdot \frac{T_{on}}{T'} \cdot (3)$$

Multiplied this current by input voltage E and converter efficiency e gives output power V^2/R , from which one obtains

$$T' = T_{on} + T_{off} + T'_{off} = \frac{EeRI_{on}^2 (E - V)}{2L_2 V^2}$$
(4)

Therefore, the lighter the load R and/or the smaller the inductance L2, the lower will be the operating frequency $1/T^{\prime}$.

Critical Load Resistance

The critical resistance, R_K , is defined as the particular light load at which the previously described T' off emerges. Period T of (2) and T' of (4) are identical at this load, thus giving

$$R_{K} = \frac{2L_{2}V}{(E-V)eT_{on}}$$
(5)

Notice that R_{κ} increases with L2 and decreases with T_{on} and e.

In the signal-conditioner converters, L2 and T_{on} are so designed that, within the specified line and load variations, the converters never encounter a nonzero T'_{off} . However, all converters are capable of maintaining regulation at light loads. Indeed, each converter provides stable operation into no load without exceeding the required regulation limit.

Output Voltage Ripple

The current excursion through inductor L2 is given by

$$\Delta i = \frac{(E - V)T_{on}}{L_2}$$
 (6)

The ripple voltage across C6 and C7 and the ripple current in them are generally in phase, suggesting that the ripple voltage is due largely to the equivalent series resistance R_c of the two paralleling capacitors. The equation for Vpp becomes

$$V_{PP} \stackrel{\sim}{=} R_{c} \Delta I = \frac{(E-V)T_{on}R_{c}}{L_{2}}$$
(7)

5.3 ENERGY-RECOVERY NETWORK

If no energy-recovery network were used, the finite recovery time associated with diode CR4 of Figure 2 would cause a sharp current pulse to pass through the source, Ql, and CR4 at the start of each T_{on} interval, causing peak power dissipation in Ql and CR4. This sudden increase of current also induces RFI, which not only propagates to the regulator output, but in addition, it can cause other spacecraft electromagnetic compatibility problems.

For the regulator to meet the peak-peak noise specification, the networks composed of inductor L1 and diode CR3, shown in Figure 2, are used. During the on-time of Q1 and the recovery time of CR4, input voltage E is absorbed by reactor L1. Diode CR3 is reverse biased, and energy is stored in L1. The rate of the current increase at the beginning of T_{on} ; the energy stored in it during T_{on} is returned to the source via diode CR3.

For the signal-conditioner converters, L1 is designed to be 12.5µH. At a maximum E of 32V, the rate of current increase is 32/12.5, or 2.56amp/µs. It therefore takes approximately lµs for the turn-on current to rise from zero to the 2-amp average loadcurrent level. By that time, diode D1 will have been fully recovered. The RFI associated with the turn-on of power switch Q1 is thus minimized. Pictures of output-voltage switching spike, with and without this suppression network, are given in Figure 4 to illustrate the utility of the network. The upper trace, representing the output-voltage ripple when no energy-recovery network was used, exhibits a considerably higher switching spike at the beginning of T_{on} interval as compared to the lower trace when the energy-recovery network was used. The higher switching spike of the upper trace is directly related to the sharper current rise previously described.

In addition to noise reduction, the network also improves the converter efficiency. For without choke L1, transistor switch Q1 would experience high dissipation due to the simultaneous high current and high voltage (i.e., essentially input voltage E) during the recovery time of diode CR4. However, the network enables most of this otherwise-lost energy to be conserved and returned to the power source.

5.4 VOLTAGE BOOSTER

The ASDTIC module requires a minimum bias supply of 22V. However, the input voltage E is only 18V during off-nominal operations. A winding N_{34} , shown schematically near the converter input, is therefore provided from output choke L2 to boost the supply voltage. This winding, along with the associated diodes CR1, CR2 and capacitor C1, are shown schematically in Figure 2. The phase relation between N_{12} and N_{34} of L2 is such that, in conjunction with input E and the peak charging of capacitor C1, a minimum of 22V is maintained for supplying the ASDTIC bias when E becomes 18V during off-nominal operations.



Figure 3. The Two-Stage Input Filter



Vertical: 20mV/Div. Horizontal: 5µs/Div.

- Figure 4. Converter Output-Voltage Switching Spike
 - (a) Without the Energy Recovery Network
 - (b) With the Energy Recovery Network

6. DESCRIPTIONS OF CONTROL FUNCTIONAL BLOCKS

The +10V converter shown in Figure 2 will again be used for control-circuit description.

6.1 ASDTIC VOLTAGE REGULATOR

The central component of the ASDTIC voltage regulator is the microminiaturized ASDTIC Module U1. Detail description of the thin-film module can be found in Reference [3]. The module, shown schematically in Figure 5, contains the following basic elements:

- Unity-Gain Amplifier
- Integrator Amplifier
- Threshold Detector
- Series Regulator

The first three elements are shown in the converter block diagram of Figure 1. The series regulator is used to provide a regulated bias voltage for the first three elements. The terminal numbers shown in Figure 5 correspond exactly with those of Ul in Figure 2.

Before entering the detail description of the ASDTIC voltage regulator in Figure 2, it is noted that the +10V converter components are packaged in two boards - a main board and a baby board. The baby board, Board Al, contains those components within the rectangular dotted enclosures of Figure 2. Thus, the Rl and Ql on the main board, for example, are not to be confused with the Rl and Ql on the baby board. With the packaging details being reserved in Section 8 to be presented later, the +10V ASDTIC voltage regulator processing control signals from a dc loop and an ac loop are now described.

The dc loop senses the load voltage. The voltage is divided down by R1 of the main board (near the converter input ground) and the parallel combination of R1 and R2 on board A1. The divided signal is fed to pin 24 of the ASDTIC, which is the input terminal of the unity-gain amplifier used for impedance-matching. The output



Figure 5. ASDTIC Module Schematic Diagram

from the unity-gain amplifier, derived from pin 18 and pin 20, connected in common, is fed to the "inverting" terminal of the integrator, pin 30, through a gain-controlling resistor R4.

The ac loop senses the instantaneous ac voltage across the inductor L2. Through gain-controlling resistors R3 and R5, the signal is fed differentially into the "inverting" and the "non-inverting" integrator terminals, pin 30 and pin 32. The algebraic sum of this ac signal and the dc output signal from the unity-gain amplifier are compared to reference VRI applied to pin 32. The error is integrated by the integrating amplifier with time constant $C_3(R_3 + R_5)$, where C_3 is the feedback capacitor of the integrator amplifier connecting between pin 10 and pin 30.

The amplitude of the sensed ac inductor voltage is determined by the turns ratio N_{56}/N_{12} on L2. Its phase in relation to the integrator terminals is such that a ramp voltage with a positive or negative slope exists during the off or on time of power switch Q1. When the instantaneous value of the ascending ramp reaches an internal reference, E_T , of the threshold detector, the pulse output from the detector available at pin 37 will actuate the one-shot pulse generator through diode CR1 on board A1, which in turn controls the power transistor to conduct for a predetermined time interval T_{on} . During T_{on} , slope of the ramp voltage at the integrator output is negative. In steady-state operation, the positive excursion of the integrator output voltage during T_{off} is identical to its negative excursion during T_{on} .

It is noted that the acluop ensures equal volt-seconds for the positive and negative half-cycle of the inductor voltage, thus securing zero net energy storage per cycle in the inductor during converter switching operation. Compared with the dc loop which senses the converter output voltage averaged by a low-frequency LC filter containing L2, C6 and C7, the control action of the ac is instantaneous.

To illustrate this fast action graphically, waveforms at several key points along the control-signal path are identified in Figure 6. Here, the converter input voltage is assumed to have a step increase, with the corresponding voltage across inductor L2 shown as E_L . The ascending integrator output ramp voltage E_I intersects the threshold level E_T to effect the threshold-detector output pulses E_{TD} . Each of these output pulses initiates a conduction interval T_{on} through the pulse generator represented by E_{PG} .

With the qualitative description of the ASDTIC voltage regulator now presented, attention is now drawn to two important integrator performance considerations - its output voltage waveform and a functional subtlety associated with its frequency response.

Integrator Output Waveform

For convenience, the inductor voltage E_L , and the integrator output E_I are given in Figures 7(A) and 7(B). The straight line in Figure 7(B) passing (T, e_T) with a slope NV/(R3 + R5)C₃ can be expressed as

$$e = e_{T} - \frac{NV}{(R_{3} + R_{5})C_{3}} (T - t)$$
 (8)

where N = $(N_{56}/N_{12} \text{ on inductor L2})$ is the ac signal sensing ratio, and T = $(T_{on} + T_{off})$ is the converter switching period. Combining (2) and (8) at t = T_{on} gives

(9)

NT

$$e = e_T - \frac{on}{(R_3 + R_5)C_3}$$
 (E-V)



Figure 6. Step-Down Chopper Regulator and ASDTIC Control Waveforms



Figure 7.

ASDTIC Integrator-Amplifier Output Voltage

- (A) Inductor Voltage
- (B) Integrator Output Voltage

Thus, the integrator output swing Δe of Figure 7(B) is

$$\Delta e = \frac{NT_{on}}{(R_3 + R_5) C_3} (E - V)$$
(10)

Equation (10) is used in designing Δe so that it is being limited to 2 volts, which is well within the threshold level e_T , thus always maintaining a linear regulator operation.

6.2 THE SIGNIFICANCE OF CAPACITOR C2 MAIN BOARD

As discussed previously, the ASDTIC regulator has two feedback loops; the dc loop sensing the load voltage, and the ac loop sensing the inductor voltage. These two loops tend to interact in such a way as to form an extremely underdamped second-order system at a particular frequency. Consequently, any transient line or load change would introduce to the regulator output a damped yet prolonged oscillation at that frequency, giving rather undesirable dynamic performances.

Mathematically, the frequency response of the ASDTIC regulator can be expressed as the following:

 $F(s) \stackrel{\sim}{=} \left[\frac{K}{1+SA}\right] \left[\frac{1}{1+SB+S^2C}\right] \left[1+SD+S^2E\right] (11)$

The first bracket on the right-hand side of equation (11) is the frequency response of the integrator, with the numerator as its dc gain. The second bracket represents the characteristic of the output LC filter and the load. The third bracket illustrates the interaction between the dc loop and the ac loop.

Unlike the conventional second-order filter response in which the second-order equation in "s" appears in the denominator, this secondorder interaction appears in the numerator. Plotted on a Bode diagram, this term introduces a negative-going valley, centered at frequency F, where F is a function of the filter as well as the control-circuit design. Specifically, F can be shown to be the following:

$$F \stackrel{\sim}{=} F_{f} \left(\frac{g_{R_{ac}}}{NR_{dc}} \right)^{1/2}$$

(12)

19

Here, F_f is the resonant frequency of the output LC filter, g is the dc voltage-divider ratio, R_{ac} is the ac loop gain-controlling resistance, R_{dc} is the dc loop gain-controlling resistance, and N2 the inductor-voltage sensing turns ratio. Corresponding to the +10V converter schematic,



and

 $N = N_{56}/N_{12}$ on L2.

Depending on the damping value of "D" in the third bracket of equation (11), the negative-going valley can be of very high amplitude, causing significant gain reduction. A sudden disturbance in either the line or the load condition would cause the regulator output to engage in prolonged osillation, yielding undesirable line and load dynamic response and poor audio-susceptibility performance within a frequency band centered at F.

To mitigate this undesirable characteristic, capacitor C2 is used, connecting between the converter output and the integrator input (Pin 30 of ASDTIC module). This greatly increases the damping value of "D" in equation (11), thus reducing the amplitude of the negativegoing valley and its detrimental consequence. The effect of C2 has been substantiated both mathematically and experimentally. In addition, the use of C2 allows stable converter steady-state operation to be maintained when load resistance increases beyond R_K , defined previously in equation (5).

6.3 ONE-SHOT PULSE GENERATOR

As shown in Figure 2, the pulse generator is located on the Al board. To start with, the converter input voltage E drives a base current $E/(R_4 + R_6)$ to keep Q2 in conduction. Resister R3, on the other hand, keeps Q1 off. The Q1, Q2, R3, R4, and R6 here are those on board A1, and should not be confused with those on the main board.

When a positive pulse is applied to the base of Q1 through diode CR1, the sudden decrease of Q1 collector voltage causes Q2 to come out of saturation. The consequent current in C1 resulting from an increase in the collector voltage of Q2 regenerates itself rapidly until Q1 conducts and Q2 turns off and remains off. Transistor Q1 is kept in conduction by the current path composed of E, R5, and C1, and base-emitter junction of Q1. This state continues until C1 is charged to the zener breakdown voltage of VR1, when Q1 is suddenly deprived of its base drive and turns off, which, in turn, initiates the turn-on of Q2. Following the complete turn-on of Q2, the one-shot pulse generator is ready for another trigger pulse. The on time of Q1, which is concurrent with the conduction of CR3 (on board A1) and Q1 and Q2 on the main board, determines on-time T_{on} of the chopper-regulator power switch. To charge C1 through R5 from voltage E, the time required for V_{c1} to reach VR1 is:

$$T_{on} = R_5 C_1 \ln \left(\frac{E}{E - VR1} \right)$$
 (13)

6.4 OVERLOAD PROTECTION

The overload protection is physically placed on the main board. Current in inductor L2 is sensed by R14. The voltage $i_{L2}R_{14}$ during normal operation is insufficient to turn on Q3 and Q4. The pulse generator therefore receives command pulses from the ASDTIC exclusively to control the cyclic on-off of power switch Q1 for as long as a regulated load voltage is maintained.

As load resistance diminishes during overload, the load-voltage regulation is eventually lost. The dc error applied to the ASDTIC is of such a phase relation that the output voltage from the threshold detector is high, thus always providing a signal for the one-shot to turn on the power

switch for the T_{on} interval defined by equation (13). At the start of and throughout the interval T_{on} when the instantaneous current of i_{L2} is increasing, the voltage drop $i_{L2}R_{14}$ is sufficiently high to keep Q3 and Q4 in conduction.

With the completion of T_{on} , inductor current i_{L2} decays through R_{14} , C6 and C7, and CR4. During the decay, Q3 and Q4 maintain conduction, thus clamping pin 37 of the micro-ASDTIC unit and inhibiting the one-shot from turning on the power switch. The decay continues until $i_{L2}^{R_{14}}$ becomes small enough to allow Q3 (and therefore Q4) to turn off. Upon removal of this inhibition, the signal from ASDTIC immediately actuates the one-shot to start another T_{on} .

Consequently, the switching action is maintained in the event of an overload. The on-time T_{on} of the power switch is identical to that during normal operation without an overload. The T_{on} interval starts as soon as the decaying i_{L2} during T_{off} causes $i_{L2}R_{14}$ to become insufficient to keep Q4 in conduction. The length of T_{off} therefore depends on the load resistance during overload. The longest T_{off} occurs when the output is short circuited. Under this condition and neglecting the small voltage drop across R_{15} , the inductor current decays at a rate of $[V_{CR4} + V_{CR5} + (V_{Q3})_{BE}]/L_2$. Since the current excursion during T_{on} and T_{off} is equal to ET_{on}/L_2 , the longest T_{off} is therefore:

$$(T_{off}) \max$$
, $\frac{2}{V} \frac{ET_{on}}{V_{CR4} + V_{CR5} + (V_{q3})} BE$ (14)

7. BREADBOARD PERFORMANCES

The +5V, +10V, and -10V converters were breadboarded and tested. Their performance characteristics were similar due to the use of identical ASDTIC control. To illustrate this uniformly-high performance capability offered by the ASDTIC, the requirement versus capability of the +5V converter breadboard, using the microminiaturized ASDTIC, is presented in Table III.

TABLE []]

REQUIREMENT VERSUS CAPABILITY +5V SUPPLY USING MICROMINIATURIZED ASDTIC CONTROL MODULE

	CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	CAPABILITY
· ·	Voltage Regulation (mV)	+50	+2.5
	Maximum Output Current (A) 2	2
	Minimum Output Current (A) 1	0
Nominal Operation	Output Center of Nominal Voltage (V	4.8-5.2	5.034-5.039
E.= 28 +4V	Output Ripple (p-p) (mV)	100	30
	Output Noise (mV)	100	40
	Maximum Short-Cir- cuited Current (A) 6	5.4
	Voltage Regulation (mV)	<u>+</u> 250	<u>+</u> 3
Off-	Output Center of Nominal Voltage (V)	4.6-5.4	5.033-5.039
Nominal Operation	Output Ripple (mV)	200	30
$E_i = 28 \pm 10V$	Output Noise (mV)	100	40

Temperature Range -55°C to 85°C

From Table III, the following conclusions can be drawn:

- (1) The measured output-voltage regulation of <u>+0.05%</u> is an order of magnitude better than that required throughout the specified line, load and temperature range, including off-nominal operations when E = 18V and at no load.
- (2) During normal operation, the output ripple and the noise spike are both within the allowed limits, each being specified at 100mV. Also, their amplitudes do not increase during off-nominal operations.

(3) The short-circuited current for each supply is limited to 5.4A, which is less than the 6A allowed.

8. CONVERTER PACKAGING

A geometric layout was made to fit a +10V, a -10V, and a +5V supply into each of the eight module frames furnished by NASA/LeRC.

Each module frame contains three major packaging portions: (1) metal frame, (2) baby board, previously referred to as Board Al, and (3) sheet metal base.

To provide proper heat-sinking, power elements including power transistors, output filter chokes, current-sensor resistors, and power diodes, are placed on the metal frame. The frame is fastened mechanically to the external sheet metal base. Service to these components can be made readily without disassembling the frame and the PC board. Separate feeders were used for input and output ground leads to maintain a clean output voltage ripple.

A baby board, identified previously as board Al, containing three pulse generators and voltage-divider trim pots, is employed to relieve component congestion and to obtain easy accessibility for output-voltage adjustments. The baby board and the PC board are separated from either side of the metal frame by spacers. Their total height is within the specified space envelope.

All other circuit parts, including the microminiaturized ASDTIC's, are placed on the sheet metal base. While all circuit components are placed on one side of the PC board, the component density on the board has necessitated the use of printed circuits on both sides. In planning the printed circuits, considerable attention was given to the maintenance of relatively noise-free surroundings for all sensor leads, all load output leads, and all voltage references. The PC board is planned so that no element generating significant amount of heat exists in the vicinity of the microminiaturized ASDTIC.

A picture of a fabricated converter board containing the +10V, -10V, and +5V converters is shown in Figure 8, in which the power inductors, transistors, diodes, and current sensing resistors for the three corresponding converters are easily seen. Board A1, the baby board, is shown in the foreground. The three microminiaturized ASDTIC's are located on the sheet metal base under the baby board, and are therefore invisible in Figure 8. The converter module's sheet metal base, with the baby board removed, is shown in Figure 9. The three microminiaturized ASDTIC modules are clearly identified.

Performances of the packaged converter met all the specified requirements. The regulation is not as precise as that of the converter breadboard, due to (1) the finite printed-circuit resistance between the regulator sensing point and the actual packaged converter output terminals, and (2) the temperature coefficient of the trimming potentiometer for packaged converter output-voltage adjustment, which replaced the precision resistor used in the converter breadboard to avoid any test-select implementation.



Figure 8. A Fabricated Signal-Conditioner Power Supply Board Containing Three Independent Converters



9. CONCLUSIONS

The microminiaturized ASDTIC module was applied successfully to control three dc to dc converters of the signal conditioner power supplies within the Brayton Cycle electrical subsystem.

Eight converter boards, each containing three independent dc to dc converters, were built, tested, and delivered to NASA Lewis Research Center.

The successful application of the ASDTIC module resulted in superb static and dynamic performances of each converter. For example, a $\pm 0.05\%$ output voltage regulation was achieved for an input change of 18V to 32V, a load change of open to full load (10W), and a temperature range of -55° C to $+85^{\circ}$ C.

The application not only substantiated the soundness of the two-loop ASDTIC control concept, but it also justified further exploitation with the objective of utilizing fully the inherent merits offered by the two-loop control as applied to converter regulators.

10. APPENDIX

Presented in this appendix is the parts list for the schematic diagram shown in Figure 2. The list on Page 31 describes those components located on the Al board of Figure 2 (i.e., the baby board). All other power processor electrical parts are given on pages 32 and 33.

Certain semiconductors are described in terms of TRW's in-house parts designation. For convenient cross-reference, the equivalent generic number of these components are given below:

TRW Designation	Generic Equivalent
PT4 - 2273	1N4573A(-03A)
2277	PD9050
2350	UTR294
7157	2N2920
7161	2N3467
7163	2N2222A
7164	2N2907A
7165	2N2851
7176	2N2880

Ļ		CULU M		7	•		PARIS LIST					_
				-1	PART OR IDENTIFYING NO.		NOMENCLATURE OR DESCRIPTION		ELEC ROF	CODE	ZONE	. T
L		i		'		PART NAME	MATERIAL	SPEC	DES	IDENT		
[263185-11	PRINTED WIRING BD						T
			-									Т
- [L.									T
- [-			1	M39014/05-0240	CAPACITOR	3300 PF ± 10% 100V	MIL-C-39014/5	CI			Ŧ
]	3	M39014/05-0282	CAPACITOR	1000 PF ±10% 100V	MILC-39014/5	22,42,52			T
					M39014/05-0285	CAPACITOR	1500 PF ± 10% 100V	MIL-C-39014/5	C5.			T
I		<u> </u>			M 39014/05-0274	CAPACITOR	470 PF ± 10% 100V	MIL-C- 39014/5	Ç3			T
											ŀ	t
				15	PT4-2268-013	DIODE	(JANTX IN3600)	PT4-2268	CRI-CRIS			T
		T		- 1								t
						· · ·						t
				4	PT4-7163-011	TRANSISTOR		PT4-7163	01,02,04,0	5		Ŧ
				1	PT4-7157-011	TRANSISTOR	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	PT4-7157	Q3			Ŧ
- [·						<u> </u>	t
- [·					<u> </u>	t
ſ				31	RTRI2DP203M	RESISTOR, VAR	20K ±5% 3/4W (RTI2C2P-203)	MIL-R-39015/1	RI. 88. 813			Ŧ
ſ				11	RNRGOC 243IFS	RESISTOR	2.43K±1% 1/8W	MIL-R-55182/3	RZ			Ŧ
Ĩ				3	RCROTG103JS	RESISTOR	OK 15% 1/4W	MIL-R-39008/1	R3 89.815			Ŧ
1				6	RCRO7G 203JS	RESISTOR	20K ±5% 1/4W	MIL-R-39008/1	R4. R6. R10. R	12.RIG.R	18	ŧ
ſ				21	RNR60C7321F5	RESISTOR	7.32K 11% 1/8W	MIL-R-55182/3	R5.RIT		<u> </u>	t
- [Ι.	П	RNRGOCSIIIES	RESISTOR	5.11K ±1% 1/8 W	MIL-R-55182/3	R7			ŧ
ſ				11	RNRGOCISOZES	RESISTOR	15.0K 117. 1/8W	MIL-R-55182/3	RII			ŧ
ľ				1	RNRGOC 2001FS	RESISTOR	2.0K 11% 1/8W	MIL-R-55182/3	RI4			Ŧ
ſ				_								Ŧ
Ī		T				·						ŧ
Ţ				3	PT4-2270-133	DIODE	(JANTX IN758A)	PT4-2270	VRI.VR2 VR	3	 	ŧ
1						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	ŧ
1						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						ŧ
1				T	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							ŧ
ſ	- 1	-		5	10251	INSULATOR TSTR				07047		ŧ
ľ				AR		INS TUBING	125 ID. TYPE-2. CL-2. GR-B	мтіз-4			<u> </u>	÷ŧ
ľ	-	+		AR		INS TUBING	250 TO TYPE-2 CL-2 GR-B	MT12-4				ŧ
ľ			1			SOLDER	SNGSWPMADE	100-5-57	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			4
			<u></u>	<u> </u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			IZE CODE IDENT NO.	<u>k</u>	· ·	<u>.</u>	4
							TOW	11000 F	2021	22		
							STREET, STREET	σι πλος Γ	CO21	c o		
						ONE 1	PACE PARK · RECONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA	لليب جسم التركيم			_	1

μ

٠.

					NOMENCLATURE OR DESCRIPTION		FLEC REF	CODE	T	Te
		-1	PART OR IDENTIFYING NO.	PART NAME	MATERIAL	SPEC	DES	IDENT	20,000	Γ
		1-11	263183-1	ASSEMBLY-ONE SH	OT CIRCUITRY		AI			Ī
		1 1	263180-1	FRAME, HEAT SINK						
		\uparrow	263182-1	PRINTED WIRING BD				· · · · · · · · · · · ·		ľ
		21	263186-1	SPACER						
_		2	2-981292	SPACER					Ĺ_	1
P		3	X254184-1	ANALOG SIGNAL CO	ONVERTER		U1,U2, U3			
8		3	-11	INSULATOR	MT3-47-110 (C252539-009)	MT3-47				L
m		3	-15	TRANSISTOR	MAKE FROM PT4-7176-011	PT4-7176	Q1,Q8,Q11			1
		З		INSULATOR	MT3-47-110 (C252539-009)	MT3-47				
		2	M39014/05-0296	CAPACITOR	.01 UF ±10% 100 V	MIL-C-39014/5	C2,C14			Ι
		3	M39003/01-2655	CAPACITOR	G-8UF 10% 75V	MIL-C-39003/1	CI, C8, CI3			I
		3	M39014/05-0292	CAPACITOR	4700 PF ±10% 100V	MIL-C-39014/5	C9			
		· 3	M39014/05-0288	CAPACITOR	2200 PF = 10% 100 V	MIL-C-39014/5	103,010,015		1	
		2	PT4-1062-007	CAPACITOR	1UF 20% 50V	PT4-1062	C4, C16			I
		3	PT4-1062-009	CAPACITOR	2UF 120% 50V	PT4-1062	C5, C11, C17			I
		15	M39003/01-2517	CAPACITOR	150UF 10% 15V	MIL-C-39003/1	C6, C7, C12, C	8,019		T
		3	M39014/02-0270	CAPACITOR	1.1 UF 10% 100V	MIL-C-39014/2	220,021,022			Ι
		2	M39014/01-0271	CAPACITOR	470 PF + 10% 200V	MIL-C-39014/1	C23,C25			Ι
		1 19	PT4-2350-011	DIODE		PT4-2350	3			Ţ
		3	PT4-2277-013	DIODE		PT4-2277	CR4, CR9, C	RI4		Ι
			PT4-2268-013	DIODE	(JANTX IN3600)	PT4-2268	CR5, CR10,	CRI5		Ι
		ŢŢĨ	M39014/02-0258	CAPACITOR	10,000 PF +10% 200 V	MIL-C-39014/2	C24			Ī
										1
		3	PT6-2066/140-1X	INDUCTOR			14,13,15		1 .	1
		ТП	PTG-2066/138-1X	INDUCTOR			L2			Ţ
		Τ	PTG-2066/139-1X	INDUCTOR			L4			T
		1	PTG-2066/138-2X	INDUCTOR		•	LG	• =		T
							1		1	1
		12	PT4-7161-013	TRANSISTOR		PT4-7161	Q2, Q12		1	t
	╏─┼─┼	T 🖬	PT4-7164-011	TRANSISTOR		PT4-7164	03,05.07.	<u> </u>	+	1
			PT4-7163-011	TRANSISTOR	1	PT4-7163	194, 96, 010	D. Q14		1
	┢┈┽┈┽	+1	PT4-7165-01	TRANSISTOR		PT4-7165	09	r <u></u>		1
	┠╌╼┼╌╶┿╌	╈					+		-	-
	<u>I</u>		<u>t</u>	<u>· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · </u>		BIZE CODE IDENT NO.	<u> </u>	L		
					TRW	R 11082	263	178		
								4. 7 - C	···	
				000	BRAGE PARK - RECONDO BEACH, CALIFORNA	SCALE	1	SHEET 2		

32

•

.

QTY RE	ULD PER ASSY							<u> </u>	T
	-1	PART OR IDENTIFYING NO.			SPEC	ELEC REF DES	IDENT	ZONE	Γ
·		DURCOCOROUTE	DESIGTOR	2 8V +1# 1/8W	MIL-2-55182/3	RI			t
	┥┥┞╬	KNKGOLCOUITS	RESISTOR	12.0K -16 764	MIL-R-55182/3	R 2			t
<u> </u>	┶┶┶┾╧	RNKGUCISOZES	RESISION	5.UK + 5 97 1/A W	MIL R- 39008/1	RIG'AG'ES	R20 R36	R38	t
	1-1-1-	KCK0/651315	RESISION	1014 1 1/4 W	MIL-P-39008/	14	1		Ŧ
 +		KCRO/GIUSJS	RESISTOR		MIL-R-39008/1	P6 229	<u> </u>		ŧ
		RCKUIGHSJS	RESISTOR		MIL-R-39008/1	R7 815 823 1	1 231 R40 R	48	t
	1 1 10	KCK01G10115	RESISION		MU-P-39007/9	R8 841	1	<u>+</u>	七
	1	KWK8ISIKOUFP	RESISTOR	2V + 57 1/4 W	MIL-P-39008/1	R9 242	·····		t
		RLKUIG20235	RESISTOR	LIVE THE DW (PHROWINES)	MIL-P-39007/9	PIN PAS			t
		KWK805HOIFP	RESISTOR	LIN 17 CW (KNOULIUF)	MIL-R 3900110	P12 P45		· · · · ·	t
	2	RCROTG24215	REDISION	2,4 K - 2% /4	MIL R-39000/1	DIA DAT	+		Ŧ
	2	RERGSFR299P	RESISTOR	.299 UHM 11% IUW (RE6508295	1MIL N 5300 3/1	BIC	<u></u>	+	\pm
		RNRGOCZOOIFS	KESISIOK	2.0K ±1% 1/8W	MILE N 3518675				t
		RNRGOCIBZZES	RESISTOR	18.CK 11% 78W	MIL 6 55102/3	1021		<u> </u>	£
	<u> </u>	RNRGOC1741FS	RESISTOR	1. (4K 1)% //8W	MIL R- 30706/3	ID24 D22	· · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · ·	÷
		RCROTGIOZJS	RESISTOR	1K 15% 1/4 W	MILCK- 39006/1	RC4, KDD			÷
		RWR8152ROOFP	RESISTOR	20HM 11% W (RVIBIUZROUF)	MIL-K-59007/9	B2C		+	+
	<u>_</u>	RWRBOSISOIFP	RESISTOR	1.5K 1% 2W (RW8001501F)	WILL R- 390017 6	1020			+
	1	RCROTGISSJS	RESISTOR	15K 15% 1/4	MIL-K- 59000/1	1630			\pm
		RERGSFRG04P	RESISTOR	+604 0HM =1% 10W (KE65GK604)	MIL-K-39009/1	1630			+
	J	RNRGOCG041F5	RESISTOR	6.04 K ±1% /8W	MILE 5184/3	15,34			-
		RNRGOC SITTES	RESISTOR	5.0 K 11% /8W	MIL K-25102/2	1522			-
		RCROTG512JS	RESISTOR	5.1K 15% 1/4 W	MIL-K-39008/1		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		+
							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-
									-
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		- <u>-</u>		+
								<u>. </u>	-
		PT4-2273-031	DIODE		P14-2213	VKI-VK6	<u> </u>		
	[]]]]	IPT4-2270-093	DIODE	(JANTX IN754A)	P14-2210	IVKI		· .	4
									4
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					+	4
		1_10251	INSULATOR.				07047		4
	1	1480 C	TERMINAL				188245		_
									_
					SIZE CODE IDENT NO.			s –	I
				TRW	B 11982	263	5175	5	
				MERGE SPACE PARK - RECONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA			Texas -		_
					ave.t.	<u> </u>	ericki -	2	_

¥

11. REFERENCES

- [1]. F. C. Schwarz, "Power Processing," NASA SP-244, 1971.
- [2]. F. C. Schwarz, "Analog Signal to Discrete Time Interval Converter (ASDTIC)," U. S. Patent 3659184, 1972.
- [3]. A. D. Schoenfeld and K. K. Schuegraf, "Design, Development and Fabrication of a Microminiaturized Electronic Analog Signal to Discrete Time Interval Converter," TRW Systems, NASA CR-120905, 1972.
- [4]. V. R. Lalli and A. D. Schoenfeld, "ASDTIC Duty-Cycle Control for Power Converters," NASA TM x-68066.